

Gladwin County Board of Commissioners Board Minutes, February 08, 2022

Kyle Grove, District 1, (Sherman, Butman, Clement, Gladwin Twp.)
Ron Taylor, District 2, Vice-Chairperson (Sage and Gladwin City)
Michael Szuch District 3, (Bentley, Billings, Bourret, Grim & Secord)
Karen Moore, District 4, Chairperson (Buckeye, Hay & Tobacco)
Rick Grove, District 5, (Grout, Beaverton City, Beaverton)

The Gladwin County Board of Commissioners met for the regular Board meeting, on February 08, 2022. The meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m. by Chairperson Karen Moore. The Pledge of Allegiance was said, all commissioners were present.

Public Comment - Agenda Items

No other public comment.

City Administrator Report

Nancy Bodner from the City of Gladwin - nothing today

The Board reviewed the Consent Agenda -

Motion made by Commissioner Taylor to accept the agenda as written, supported by Commissioner K. Grove; all in favor, motion carried.

Reading of Cash Balances

Commissioner Taylor read the cash balances as \$252,883.79 before the payment of bills.

Approval of the Board Minutes:

1. January 25, 2022, Regular Board Meeting

Communications – Conversation was had on an email sent to the Board regarding the temperature set at the Health Department. Discussion was had on how that temperature is regulated. Maintenance supervisor Rick Ghent discussed the building management system for heating and cooling.

Finance Reports/Claims and Accounts General Fund

- 1. Request for approval for County Clerk to order five (5) printer ribbons for the ID badge/CPL printer County Clerk, Karrie Hulme
 - a. 2 ribbons for ID badge printer, line 101-258-815.933 for \$353.34
 - b. 3 ribbons for CPL printer, line 263-000-727.000 for \$530.01.

Motion made by Commissioner K. Grove to approve the purchase of five printer ribbons for the card printer as follows: 2 ribbons for ID badge printer, line 101-258-815.933 for \$353.34 and 3 ribbons for CPL printer, line 263-000-727.000 for \$530.01. Seconded by Commissioner Taylor, all in favor, motion carried.

2. Request for approval to allow the County Administrator to attend MAC 2022 Michigan Counties Legislative Conference in Lansing, March 21-23.

Motion made by Commissioner Taylor to approval to allow the County Administrator to attend MAC 2022 Michigan Counties Legislative Conference in Lansing, March 21-23; total cost of \$810.40 to be paid as follows: Cost of conference is \$395.00 from line 101-101-860.000. Cost of hotel is \$142.95/night x 2 nights = \$285.90 from line 101-101-860.000. Mileage of approximately 225 miles x \$.058/mile = \$129.50 from line 101-101-860-000. Seconded by Commissioner Szuch, all in favor, motion carried.

3. Request for approval for Dispatcher Nicole Burkhart to attend training course #HAA202002A: "911 Homicide: Is the Caller the Killer?" sponsored by Oakland Police/Crest Academy.

Motion made by Commissioner K. Grove to allow Dispatcher Burkhart to attend 911 training in the amount of \$325 including hotel, meals, and mileage reimbursement to be paid from line 282-000-804.001. Seconded by Commissioner Taylor; all in favor, motion carried.

 Request for approval to allow Veteran's Director, Ken Roberts to attend MACVC Spring conference, April 19-22 in Kalamazoo - Veterans Director, Ken Roberts

Motion by Commissioner Taylor to allow Ken Roberts to attend MACVC Spring conference for the cost of \$65.00 plus hotel, meals, and mileage, reimbursable through a state training reimbursement grant from Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency (MVAA), along with one additional hotel night (not reimbursed by MVAA) for Director Roberts to meet with the Michigan Veterans Trust Fund. Cost of one additional hotel night is \$85.00 from line 101-682-860.000. Seconded by Commissioner R. Grove; all in favor, motion carried.

5. Request for approval of renewing County membership in the Beaverton Area Business Association (BABA).

Motion made by Commissioner K. Grove to renew the county's BABA \$90 and GBPA \$65 memberships from line item 101-101-801.000. Seconded by Commissioner Taylor; all in favor, motion carried.

6. Request for approval of 80 hours unused vacation time for Rick Ghent, per union contract.

Motion made by Commissioner K. Grove to approve the payout of 80 hours of unused vacation time to Rick Ghent in the amount of \$2,248 from line 101-265-702.000. Seconded by Commissioner Szuch; all in favor, motion carried

- 7. Request for approval of estimates from ITRIGHT:
 - a. Replacement of 4 PC's in the Sheriff's Department per planned obsolescence agreement for the cost of \$3,742.44 to be paid from line 101-301-983.000
 - b. Replacement of four servers within the county for the cost of \$24,772.50 to be paid from line 101-258815.005

Motion made by Commissioner Szuch to allow for the purchases from IT Right as indicated above. Seconded by Commissioner K. Grove; all in favor, motion carried.

Committee Meetings/Reports - None

Miscellaneous - None

New Business

- 1. Introduction of Eric Karbowski, MA, EST, QMHP: incoming District 6 Director for MSU Extension. Mr. Karbowski introduced himself to the board and shared a little about himself and the updated information and services through MSU Extension.
- 2. Request for approval to appoint Deborah Brushaber to the open seat on the DHSS Advisory Board. Tom Winarski shared some information on the open seat and the request for Ms. Brushaber to fill the three-year term.
 - Motion made by Commissioner Taylor to appoint Deborah Brushaber to the open seat on the DHSS Advisory Board. Seconded by Commissioner R. Grove; all in favor, motion carried.
- 3. Resignation of Veterans Committee member. Veterans Director, Ken Roberts.

 A committee member has resigned and Director Roberts is asking approval to post for the open position in the paper.
 - Motion made by Commissioner Taylor to accept the resignation and to approve the posting for a new committee member, seconded by Commissioner Szuch; all in favor, motion carried.
- 4. Discussion of BS&A on access structure from Administrator Justin as follow:
 - a) County Treasurer to retain administrative control of all BS&A modules
 - b) Permission for County Treasurer to grant read-only access of Payroll module to the County Clerk
 - c) Permission for the County Treasurer to grant full access of Payroll module to County Administrator
 - d) Permission for the County Treasurer to grant General Ledger authority to perform quarterly and year-end adjustments, not dealing with cash, to the County Administrator
 - e) All General Ledger entries dealing with cash remain the sole function of the County Treasurer

Motion made by Commissioner Moore to approve BS&A access as discussed. Seconded by Commissioner Taylor. Further conversation was had; all in favor, motion carried.

Chair Comments

-Commissioner Moore mentioned the next Hazard Mitigation meeting on Feb. 10, has been moved to 1:00, and noted the importance of having townships attend.

- -Business after hours is this Thursday at Farmers Insurance from 4:30 7:00 p.m. There will be a ribbon cutting ceremony at 4:30.
- -Legislative Breakfast this Friday on local government at the Knights of Columbus Hall at 7:30 a.m.

Board Comments

- 1. Kyle Grove, District 1:
 - Attended data and personnel meetings last Friday.
- 2. Ron Taylor, District 2:
 - 26th of Jan. was the Health Board meeting continued conversation on Covid
 - 2nd, Union Negotiations
 - Last night city council
- 3. Michael Szuch, District 3:
 - Wednesday was a Union Negotiation meeting
 - Friday had personnel and data committee meetings
 - Township meetings start tonight.
- 4. Karen Moore, District 4:
 - Wixom Lake Social group is doing a really good job. If you come up Dundas Rd. you'll see the progress, as well as some of the canals.
 - Gladwin Leadership program is starting this February. March's module will be a county tour, which includes visiting one of our dams.
 - Health Department's presentation was on needle exchange and safe use of illegal drugs. Further discussion on clarifying the purpose as leading to rehabilitation
 - ARPA committee meeting Feb 16th.
- 5. Rick Grove, District 5:
 - Grout township meeting tonight.
 - Animal control meeting got moved and wasn't able to attend.

Administration Reports

ARPA meeting is coming up.

Finished the next two modules of the Grant writing program

Chris is starting in the Gypsy Moth program next week on Monday; will be housed in the annex building

Public Comment

-Chuck Sikora, Vice President of the Secord Lake Association, introduced himself to the board and shared his involvement going forward. Discussion was had on some bills currently awaiting approval; these bills will impact dam repair progress. Don Zakett, of Four Lakes Task Force (FLTF) joined the conversation and shared that the Secord and Smallwood lakes will return to normal lake levels sooner than others, and the reasons that support that. Additionally discussed the process's involved in making determinations on assessments in a Special Assessment District (SAD). Further discussion on the MI Land Division Act, FLTF list of SAD properties, and an error in some mailings form the FLTF.

No other Public Comment.

- 1. Discussion by Attorney Hoerauf of final drafts for the following union contracts:
 - a. UAW Unit 7
 - b. UAW Unit 6
 - c. POAM Dispatchers Unit
 - d. POAM Deputies Unit

She is seeking approval for the Board chair to sign all four.

Commissioner Szuch motioned to allow Chairperson Moore to sign UAW 6 and 7, POAM Dispatch & PAOM Deputies Contracts. Seconded by Commissioner Taylor; all in favor, motion carried.

Discussion of Kludt vs. Hay Twp lawsuit - Drain Commissioner Terry Walters and Attorney Hoerauf discussed a Summons and Complaint filed over property access at the end of Norway Street that named the Treasurer and the Drain Commissioner. Conversation was had on how to proceed.

There is currently a jail collections suit in process, a foreclosure lawsuit is pending, and the dam failure lawsuits are in discovery and deposition process.

The is a new opinion on the Open Meetings Act to provide accommodations to individuals who need assistance. Attorney Hoerauf is recommending budgeting for some technologies to meet this requirement.

Motion to adjourn by Commissioner Moore, seconded by Commissioner K. Grove; meeting adjourned at 11:18 a.m.

Karrie Hulme, County Clerk

Karen Moore, Chairperson

Posted 02/28/22

COUNTY OF GLADWIN

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Gladwin, Michigan (the "County"), was held in Gladwin, Michigan, on February 22, 2022. The following Commissioners were

PRESENT:	Kyle Grove, Ron Taylor, Michael Szuch, Karen Moore, and Rick Grove
ABSENT:	None
The r	esolution set forth below was offered by Commissioner Ron Taylor and Commissioner Kyle Grove.

2022 BORROWING RESOLUTION (2021 DELINQUENT TAXES)

WHEREAS, ad valorem real property taxes are imposed by the County and the local taxing units within the County on July 1 and/or December 1 of each year; and

WHEREAS, a certain portion of these taxes remain unpaid and uncollected on March 1 of the year following assessment, at which time they are returned delinquent to the County's treasurer (the "Treasurer"); and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer is bound to collect all delinquent taxes, interest and property tax administration fees which would otherwise be payable to the local taxing units within the County; and

WHEREAS, the statutes of the State of Michigan authorize the County to establish a fund, in whole or in part from borrowed proceeds, to pay local taxing units within the County their respective shares of delinquent ad valorem real property taxes in anticipation of the collection of those taxes by the Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the County Board of Commissioners (the "Board") has adopted a resolution authorizing the County's Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund (the "Revolving Fund Program"), pursuant to Section 87b of Act No. 206, Michigan Public Acts of 1893, as amended ("Act 206"); and

WHEREAS, such fund has been established to provide a source of monies from which the Treasurer may pay any or all delinquent ad valorem real property taxes which are due the County, and any city, township, school district, intermediate school district, community college district, special assessment district, drainage district, or other political unit within the geographical boundaries of the County participating in the County's Revolving Fund Program pursuant to Act 206 ("local units"); and

WHEREAS, the Treasurer is authorized under Act 206, and has been directed by the Board, to make such payments with respect to delinquent ad valorem real property taxes (including the property tax administration fees assessed under subsection (6) of Section 44 of Act 206) owed in 2021 to the County and the local units (collectively, the "taxing units") which will have remained unpaid on March 1, 2022 and the Treasurer is authorized to pledge these amounts in addition to any amounts not already pledged for repayment of prior series of Notes (or after such prior series of Notes are retired as a secondary pledge) all as the Treasurer shall specify in an order when the Notes authorized hereunder are issued (the "Delinquent Taxes"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that in order to raise sufficient monies to adequately fund the Revolving Fund, the County must issue its General Obligation Limited Tax Notes, Series 2022 in one or more series, in accordance with Sections 87c, 87d, 87g and 89 of Act 206 and on the terms and conditions set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 101. <u>Establishment of 2022 Revolving Fund</u>. In order to implement the continuation of the Revolving Fund Program and in accordance with Act 206, the County hereby establishes a 2022 Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund (the "Revolving Fund") as a separate and segregated fund within the existing Delinquent Tax Revolving Fund of the County previously established by the Board pursuant to Section 87b of Act 206.
- 102. <u>Issuance of Notes</u>. The County shall issue its General Obligation Limited Tax Notes, Series 2022 in one or more series (the "Notes" or "Note"), in accordance with this Resolution and Sections 87c, 87d, 87g and 89 of Act 206, payable in whole or in part from the Delinquent Taxes and/or from the other sources specified below.

103. Aggregate Amount of Notes.

- (a) The Notes shall be issued in an aggregate amount to be determined in accordance with this Section by the Treasurer.
- (b) The aggregate amount of the Notes shall not be less than the amount by which the actual or estimated Delinquent Taxes exceeds (i) the County's participating share of Delinquent

Taxes, and (ii) any sums otherwise available to fund the Tax Payment Account established under Section 702 (including any monies held in respect of Section 704(c)).

- (c) The aggregate amount of the Notes shall not be greater than the sum of (i) the actual amount of the Delinquent Taxes pledged to the payment of debt service on the Notes, plus (ii) the amount determined by the Treasurer to be allocated to a reserve fund. Original proceeds of the Notes devoted to a reserve fund shall not exceed the lesser of (A) the amount reasonably required for those of the Notes secured by the reserve fund, (B) 10% of the proceeds of such Notes, (C) the maximum amount of annual debt service on such Notes, or (D) 125% of average annual debt service on such Notes.
- (d) The aggregate amount of the Notes shall be designated by the Treasurer by written order after (i) the amount of the Delinquent Taxes, or the amount of Delinquent Taxes to be funded by the issuance of the Notes, has been estimated or determined, and (ii) the amount of the reasonably required reserve fund has been calculated. Delinquent Taxes shall be estimated based on delinquencies experienced during the past three fiscal years and on demographic and economic data relevant to the current tax year, and shall be determined based on certification from each of the taxing units. The amount of the reasonably required reserve fund shall be calculated pursuant to such analyses and certificates as the Treasurer may request.
- 104. Proceeds. If the Notes are issued and sold before the Treasurer has received certification from the taxing units of the amount of the Delinquent Taxes and if such certification is not reasonably anticipated to occur to allow distribution of the proceeds of the Notes within 20 days after the date of issue, the proceeds of the Notes shall be deposited in the County's 2022 Delinquent Tax Project Account and thereafter used to fund the whole or a part of the County's 2022 Tax Payment Account, 2022 Notes Reserve Account and/or 2022 Note Payment Account, subject to and in accordance with Article VII. If the Notes are issued and sold on or after such time, the proceeds of the Notes shall be deposited directly into the County's 2022 Tax Payment Account, 2022 Note Reserve Account and/or 2022 Note Payment Account, as provided in Article VII.
- 105. Treasurer's Order Authorizing Notes and Establishing Delinquent Taxes. At or prior to the time any Notes are issued pursuant to this resolution, the Treasurer, as authorized by Act 206, may issue a written order specifying the amount and character of the Delinquent Taxes, the Article or Articles under which the Notes are being issued and any other matters subject to the Treasurers control under either this resolution or Act 206.

II. FIXED MATURITY NOTES

201. <u>Authority</u>. At the option of the Treasurer, exercisable by written order, the Notes may be issued in accordance with this Article II. All reference to "Notes" in Article II refers only to Notes issued pursuant to Article II, unless otherwise specified.

- 202. <u>Date</u>. The Notes shall be dated as of the date of issue or as of such earlier date specified by written order of the Treasurer.
- 203. <u>Maturity and Amounts</u>. Notes issued pursuant to this Article II shall be structured in accordance with subsections (a) or (b) below as determined by the Treasurer pursuant to written order.
- (a) The first maturity of the Notes or of a series of the Notes shall be determined by the Treasurer pursuant to written order, but shall not be later than three years after the date of issue. Later maturities of the Notes shall be on the first anniversary of the preceding maturity or on such earlier date as the Treasurer may specify by written order. The Notes shall be structured with the number of maturities determined by the Treasurer to be necessary or appropriate, and the last maturity shall be scheduled for no later than the sixth anniversary of the date of issue. The amount of each maturity or of any mandatory or optional call date shall be set by the Treasurer when the amount of Delinquent Taxes is determined by the Treasurer or when a reliable estimate of the Delinquent Taxes is available to the Treasurer. In determining the exact amount of each maturity or of any mandatory or optional call date the Treasurer shall consider the schedule of delinquent tax collections prepared for the tax years December 31, 2021, or of any other years and the corollary schedule setting forth the anticipated rate of collection of those Delinquent Taxes which are pledged to the repayment of the Notes. The amount of each maturity and the scheduled maturity dates of the Notes shall be established to take into account the dates on which the Treasurer reasonably anticipates the collection of such Delinquent Taxes and shall allow for no more than a 15% variance between the debt service payable on each maturity date, the Notes, and the anticipated amount of pledged monies available on such maturity date to make payment of such debt service.
- (b) Alternatively, the Notes or a series of the Notes may be structured with a single stated maturity falling not later than the fourth anniversary of the date of issue. The Notes issued under this subsection (b) shall be subject to redemption on such terms consistent with the applicable parts of subsection (a) of this section and with Section 209 as shall be ordered by the Treasurer, but in no event shall such Notes be subject to redemption less frequently than annually.

204. Interest Rate and Date of Record.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the Notes issued pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 203 shall bear interest payable semi-annually, with the first interest payment to be payable (i) on the first date, after issuance, corresponding to the day and month on which the maturity of such Notes falls, or (ii) if the Treasurer so orders, six months before such date. In the event (i) any maturity of the Notes arises either less than six months before the succeeding maturity date or less than six months after the preceding maturity date and (ii) the Treasurer so orders in writing, interest on the Notes shall be payable on such succeeding or preceding maturity date. Subject to the following sentence, the Notes issued pursuant to subsection (b) of Section 203 shall, pursuant to written order of the Treasurer, bear interest monthly, quarterly, or semiannually, as provided by written order of the Treasurer. If the Notes issued under this Article II are sold with a variable rate feature as provided in Article IV, such Notes may, pursuant

to written order of the Treasurer, bear interest weekly, monthly, quarterly or on any put date, or any combination of the foregoing, as provided by written order of the Treasurer.

- (b) Interest shall not exceed the maximum rate permitted by law.
- (c) Interest shall be mailed by first class mail to the registered owner of each Notes as of the applicable date of record, provided, however, that the Treasurer may agree with the Registrar (as defined below) on a different method of payment.
- (d) Subject to Section 403 in the case of variable rate Notes, the date of record shall be not fewer than 14 nor more than 31 days before the date of payment, as designated by the Treasurer prior to the sale of the Notes.
- 205. Note Form. The form of Note shall be consistent with the provisions of this Resolution and shall reflect all material terms of the Notes. Unless the Treasurer shall by written order specify the contrary, the Notes shall be issued in fully registered form both as to principal and interest, registrable upon the books of a Note Registrar (the "Registrar") to be named by the Treasurer. If the Notes are issued in bearer form the Treasurer shall appoint a paying agent (the "Paying Agent"). (The Registrar or Paying Agent so named may be any bank or trust company or other entity, including the County, offering the necessary services pertaining to the registration and transfer of negotiable securities.)
- 206. <u>Denominations and Numbers</u>. The Notes shall be issued in one or more denomination or denominations of \$1,000 each or any integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess of \$1,000, as determined by the Treasurer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, in the event the Notes are deposited under a book entry depository trust arrangement pursuant to Section 208, the Notes may, if required by the depository trustee, be issued in denominations of \$5,000 each or any integral multiple of \$5,000. The Notes shall be numbered from one upwards, regardless of maturity, in such order as the Registrar shall determine.

207. Transfer or Exchange of Notes.

- (a) Notes issued in registered form shall be transferable on a Note register maintained with respect to the Notes upon surrender of the transferred Notes, together with an assignment executed by the registered owner or his or her duly authorized attorney-in-fact in form satisfactory to the Registrar. Upon receipt of a properly assigned Note, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a new Note or Notes in equal aggregate principal amount and like interest rate and maturity to the designated transferee or transferees.
- (b) The Notes may likewise be exchanged for one or more other Notes with the same interest rate and maturity in authorized denominations aggregating the same principal amount as the Note or Notes being exchanged, upon surrender of the Note or Notes and the submission of written instructions to the Registrar or, in the case of bearer Notes, to the Paying Agent. Upon receipt of a Note with proper written instructions the Registrar or Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver a new Note or Notes to the owner thereof or to the owner's attorney-infact.

- (c) Any service charge made by the Registrar or Paying Agent for any such registration, transfer or exchange shall be paid for by the County as an expense of borrowing, unless otherwise agreed by the Treasurer and the Registrar or Paying Agent. The Registrar or Paying Agent may, however, require payment by a Noteholder of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with any such registration, transfer or exchange.
- 208. Book Entry Depository Trust. At the option of the Treasurer, and notwithstanding any contrary provision of Section 212, the Notes may be deposited, in whole or in part, with a depository trustee designated by the Treasurer who shall transfer ownership of interests in the Notes by book entry and who shall issue depository trust receipts or acknowledgments to owners of interests in the Notes. Such book entry depository trust arrangement, and the form of depository trust receipts or acknowledgments, shall be as determined by the Treasurer after consultation with the depository trustee. The Treasurer is authorized to enter into any depository trust agreement on behalf of the County upon such terms and conditions as the Treasurer shall deem appropriate and not otherwise prohibited by the terms of this Resolution. The depository trustee may be the same as the Registrar otherwise named by the Treasurer, and the Notes may be transferred in part by depository trust and in part by transfer of physical certificates as the Treasurer may determine.

209. Redemption.

- (a) Subject to the authority granted the Treasurer pursuant to subsection (c) of this Section (in the case of fixed rate Notes) and to the authority granted the Treasurer pursuant to Section 404 (in the case of variable rate Notes), the Notes or any maturity or maturities of the Notes shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the terms set forth in subsection (b) below.
- (b) Notes scheduled to mature after the first date on which any Notes of the series are scheduled to mature shall be subject to redemption, in inverse order of maturity, on each interest payment date arising after the date of issue.
- (c) If the Treasurer shall determine such action necessary to enhance the marketability of the Notes or to reduce the interest rate to be offered by prospective purchasers on any maturity of the Notes, the Treasurer may, by written order prior to the issuance of such Notes, (i) designate some or all of the Notes as non-callable, regardless of their maturity date, and/or (ii) delay the first date on which the redemption of callable Notes would otherwise be authorized under subsection (b) above.
- (d) Notes of any maturity subject to redemption may be redeemed before their scheduled maturity date, in whole or in part, on any permitted redemption date or dates, subject to the written order of the Treasurer. The Notes called for redemption shall be redeemed at par, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, plus, if the Treasurer so orders, a premium of not more than 1%. Redemption may be made by lot or pro rata, as shall be determined by the Treasurer.

- (e) With respect to partial redemptions, any portion of a Note outstanding in a denomination larger than the minimum authorized denomination may be redeemed, provided such portion as well as the amount not being redeemed constitute authorized denominations. In the event less than the entire principal amount of a Note is called for redemption, the Registrar or Paying Agent shall, upon surrender of the Note by the owner thereof, authenticate and deliver to the owner a new Note in the principal amount of the principal portion not redeemed.
- (f) Notice of redemption shall be by first class mail 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, or such shorter time prior to the date fixed for redemption as may be consented to by the holders of all outstanding Notes to be called for redemption. Such notice shall fix the date of record with respect to the redemption if different than otherwise provided in this Resolution. Any defect in any notice shall not affect the validity of the redemption proceedings. Notes so called for redemption shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with a paying agent to redeem the same.
- 210. <u>Discount</u>. At the option of the Treasurer, the Notes may be offered for sale at a discount not to exceed 2%.
- 211. Public or Private Sale. The Treasurer may, at the Treasurer's option, conduct a public sale of the Notes after which sale the Treasurer shall either award the Notes to the lowest bidder or reject all bids. The conditions of sale shall be as specified in a published Notice of Sale prepared by the Treasurer announcing the principal terms of the Notes and the offering. Alternatively, the Treasurer may, at the Treasurer's option, negotiate a private sale of the Notes as provided in Act 206. If required by law, or if otherwise determined by the Treasurer to be in the best interest of the County, (a) the Notes shall be rated by a national rating agency selected by the Treasurer, (b) a good faith deposit shall be required of the winning bidder, and/or (c) CUSIP numbers shall be assigned to the Notes. If a public sale is conducted or if otherwise required by law or the purchaser of the Notes, the Treasurer shall prepare or cause to be prepared and disseminated an offering memorandum or official statement containing all material terms of the offer and sale of the Notes. Pursuant to any sale of the Notes, the County shall make such filings, shall solicit such information and shall obtain such governmental approvals as shall be required pursuant to any state or federal law respecting back-up income tax withholding, securities regulation, original issue discount or other regulated matter.
- 212. Execution and Delivery. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to execute the Notes on behalf of the County by manual or facsimile signature, provided that if the facsimile signature is used the Notes shall be authenticated by the Registrar or any tender agent as may be appointed pursuant to Section 801(c). The Notes shall be sealed with the County seal or imprinted with a facsimile of such seal. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to then deliver the Notes to the purchaser thereof upon receipt of the purchase price. The Notes shall be delivered at the expense of the County in such city or cities as may be designated by the Treasurer.
- 213. <u>Renewal, Refunding or Advance Refunding Notes</u>. If at any time it appears to be in the best interests of the County, the Treasurer, by written order, may authorize the issuance of renewal, refunding or advance refunding Notes. The terms of such Notes, and the procedures incidental to their issuance, shall be set subject to Section 309 and, in appropriate cases, Article X.

III. SHORT-TERM NOTES

- 301. <u>Authority</u>. At the option of the Treasurer, exercisable by written order, the Notes may be issued in accordance with this Article III. All references to "Notes" in Article III refer only to Notes issued pursuant to Article III, unless otherwise specified.
- 302. <u>Date and Maturity</u>. The Notes shall be dated as of their date of issuance or any prior date selected by the Treasurer, and each issuance thereof shall mature on such date not exceeding three years from the date of their issuance as may be specified by written order of the Treasurer.
- 303. <u>Interest and Date of Record</u>. The Notes shall bear interest payable monthly, quarterly, or semi-annually and at maturity at such rate or rates as may be determined by the Treasurer not exceeding the maximum rate of interest permitted by law on the date the Notes are issued. The date of record shall be not fewer than two nor more than 31 days before the date of payment, as designated by the Treasurer prior to the sale of the Notes.
- 304. <u>Note Form</u>. The form of Note shall be consistent with the prescriptions of this Resolution and shall reflect all material terms of the Notes. The Notes shall, in the discretion of the Treasurer and consistent with Section 205, either be payable to bearer or be issued in registered form. If issued in registered form, the Notes may be constituted as book-entry securities consistent with Section 208, notwithstanding any contrary provision of Section 308.
- 305. <u>Denomination and Numbers</u>. The Notes shall be issued in one or more denomination or denominations, as determined by the Treasurer. The Notes shall be numbered from one upwards in such order as the Treasurer determines.
- 306. <u>Redemption</u>. The authority and obligations of the Treasurer set forth in subsections (b) and (c) of Section 209 (in the case of fixed rate Notes), or Section 404 (in the case of variable rate Notes), as the case may be, shall apply also to the Notes issued under Article III.
- 307. <u>Sale of Notes</u>. The authority and obligations of the Treasurer set forth in Sections 210 and 211 respecting Fixed Maturity Notes shall apply also to the Notes issued under Article III.
- 308. <u>Execution and Delivery</u>. The authority and obligations of the Treasurer set forth in Section 212 respecting Fixed Maturity Notes shall also apply to the Notes issued under Article III.

309. Renewal or Refunding Notes.

(a) The Treasurer may by written order authorize the issuance of renewal or refunding Notes (collectively the "Renewal Notes"). Renewal Notes shall be sold on the maturity date of, and the proceeds applied to the payment of debt service on, the Notes to be renewed. The maturities and repayment terms of the Renewal Notes shall be set by written order of the Treasurer.

- (b) In the order authorizing Renewal Notes, the Treasurer shall specify whether the Notes shall be issued in accordance with this Article III, in which event the provisions of Article III shall govern the issuance of the Notes, or whether the Notes shall be issued in accordance with Article II, in which event the provisions of Article II shall govern the issuance of the Notes. The order shall also provide for and shall also govern with respect to:
 - (i) the aggregate amount of the Renewal Notes;
 - (ii) the date of the Renewal Notes;
 - (iii) the denominations of the Renewal Notes;
 - (iv) the interest payment dates of the Renewal Notes;
 - (v) the maturity or maturities of the Renewal Notes;
 - (vi) the terms of sale of the Renewal Notes;
- (vii) whether any Renewal Notes issued in accordance with Article II shall be subject to redemption and, if so, the terms thereof; and
- (viii) any other terms of the Renewal Notes consistent with, but not specified in, Article II or Article III.
- (c) Regardless of whether Renewal Notes need be approved by prior order of the Department of Treasury, the Treasurer, pursuant to Section 89(5)(d) of Act 206, shall promptly report to the Department of Treasury the issuance of any Renewal Notes.

IV. VARIABLE INTEREST RATE

- 401. <u>Variable Rate Option</u>. At the option of the Treasurer, exercisable by written order, the Notes, whether issued pursuant to Article II or Article III, may be issued with a variable interest rate, provided that the rate shall not exceed the maximum rate of interest permitted by law.
- 402. <u>Determination of Rate</u>. The order of the Treasurer shall provide how often the variable interest rate shall be subject to recalculation, the formula or procedure for determining the variable interest rate, whether and on what terms the rate shall be determined by a remarketing agent in the case of demand obligations consistent with Section 801(d), and whether and on what terms a fixed rate of interest may be converted to or from a variable rate of interest. Such formula or procedure shall be as determined by the Treasurer, but shall track or float within a specified percentage band around the rates generated by any one or more of the following indices:
- (i) Publicly reported prices or yields of obligations of the United States of America;

- (ii) An index of municipal obligations periodically reported by a nationally recognized source;
- (iii) The prime lending rate from time to time set by any bank or trust company in the United States with unimpaired capital and surplus exceeding \$40,000,000;
- (iv) Any other rate or index that may be designated by order of the Treasurer provided such rate or index is set or reported by a source which is independent of and not controlled by the Treasurer or the County.

The procedure for determining the variable rate may involve one or more of the above indices as alternatives or may involve the setting of the rate by a municipal bond specialist provided such rate shall be within a stated percentage range of one or more of the indices set forth above.

- 403. <u>Date of Record</u>. The Date of Record shall be not fewer than one nor more than 31 days before the date of payment, as designated by written order of the Treasurer.
- 404. Redemption. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of subsections (b) and (c) of Section 209, but subject to the last sentence of this Section 404, Notes bearing interest at a variable rate may be subject to redemption by the County and/or put by the holder at any time or times and in any order, as may be determined pursuant to written order of the Treasurer. Notes shall not be subject to redemption more frequently than monthly.

405. Remarketing, Repurchase and Resale.

- (a) In the event the Notes issued under this Article IV are constituted as demand obligation, the interest rate on the Notes shall be governed by, and shall be subject to, remarketing by a remarketing agent appointed in accordance with Section 801(c), under the terms of a put agreement employed in accordance with Section 801(d).
- (b) The County shall be authorized, consistent with Act 206 and pursuant to order of the Treasurer, to participate in the repurchase and resale of the Notes in order to reduce the cost of, or increase the revenue, attendant to the establishment of the Revolving Fund and the issuance and discharge of the Notes. Any purchase of the Notes pursuant to this subsection (b) shall be made with unpledged monies drawn from revolving funds established by the County in connection with retired general obligation limited tax notes.

V. MULTIPLE SERIES

501. <u>Issuance of Multiple Series</u>. At the option of the Treasurer, exercisable by written order, the Note or Notes issued under Article II, Article III or Article X may be issued in two or more individually designated series. Each series shall bear its own rate of interest, which may be fixed or variable in accordance with Article IV. Various series need not be issued at the same time and may be issued from time to time in the discretion of the Treasurer exercisable by written order. In determining the dates of issuance of the respective series, the Treasurer shall consider, among

other pertinent factors, the impact the dates selected may have on the marketability, rating and/or qualification for credit support or liquidity support for, or insurance of, the Note or Notes. The Note of each such series shall be issued according to this Resolution in all respects (and the term "Note" or "Notes" shall be deemed to include each series of Notes throughout this Resolution), provided that:

- (a) The aggregate principal amount of the Notes of all series shall not exceed the maximum aggregate amount permitted under Section 103;
- (b) Each series shall be issued pursuant to Article II or Article III, and different series may be issued pursuant to different Articles;
- (c) Each series shall be issued pursuant to Section 502 or Section 503, and different series may be issued pursuant to different Sections;
- (d) A series may be issued under Article II for one or more of the annual maturities set forth in Article II with the balance of the annual maturities being issued under Article II or under Article III in one or more other series, provided that the minimum annual maturities set forth in Section 203 shall be reduced and applied pro rata to all Notes so issued; and
- (e) The Notes of all series issued pursuant to Article II above shall not, in aggregate, mature in amounts or on dates exceeding the maximum authorized maturities set forth in Section 203.
- 502. Series Secured Pari Passu. If the Notes are issued in multiple series pursuant to this Article V, each series of Notes may, by written order of the Treasurer, be secured pari passu with the other by the security described in and the amounts pledged by Article VII below. Moreover, such security may, pursuant to further written order of the Treasurer, be segregated in accordance with the following provisions.
- (a) The Treasurer may by written order establish separate sub-accounts in the County's 2022 Note Reserve Account for each series of Notes, into which shall be deposited the amount borrowed for the Note Reserve Account for each such series.
- (b) The Treasurer may by written order establish separate sub-accounts in the County's 2022 Note Payment Account for each series of Notes, and all amounts deposited in the Note Payment Account shall be allocated to the sub-accounts.
- (c)(i) In the event separate sub-accounts are established pursuant to subsection (b) above, and subject to Paragraph (ii) below, the percentage of deposits to the County's 2022 Note Payment Account allocated to each sub-account may be set equal to the percentage that Notes issued in the corresponding series bears to all Notes issued under this Resolution or to any other percentage designated by the Treasurer pursuant to written order; provided that if the various series are issued at different times or if the various series are structured with different maturity dates, (I) sums deposited in the Note Payment Account prior to the issuance of one or more series may upon the issuance of each such series be reallocated among the various sub-accounts established under

Subsection (b) above to achieve a balance among the sub-accounts proportionate to the designated percentage allocation, and/or (II) deposits to the Note Payment Account may be allocated among the sub-accounts according to the total amount of debt service that will actually be paid from the respective sub-accounts.

- (ii) Alternatively, the Treasurer may, by written order, rank the sub-accounts established under Subsection (b) above in order of priority, and specify that each such sub-account shall receive deposits only after all sub-accounts having a higher priority have received deposits sufficient to discharge all (or any specified percentage of) Notes whose series corresponds to any of the sub-accounts having priority.
- (d) In the absence of a written order of the Treasurer to the contrary, the amounts in each sub-account established pursuant to this Section 502 shall secure only the Notes issued in the series for which such sub-account was established, until such Notes and interest on such Notes are paid in full, after which the amounts in such sub-account may, pursuant to written order of the Treasurer, be added pro rata to the amounts in the other sub-accounts and thereafter used as part of such other sub-accounts to secure all Notes and interest on such Notes for which such other sub-accounts were created, until paid in full. Alternatively, amounts held in two or more sub-accounts within either the Note Reserve Account or the Note Payment Account may be commingled, and if commingled shall be held *pari passu* for the benefit of the holders of each series of Notes pertaining to the relevant sub-accounts.
- 503. <u>Series Independently Secured</u>. If the Notes are issued in multiple series pursuant to this Article V, each series of Notes may, by written order of the Treasurer, be independently secured in accordance with this Section 503.
- (a) Each series of Notes shall pertain to one or more taxing units, as designated by the Treasurer pursuant to written order, and no two series of Notes shall pertain to the same taxing unit. A school district, intermediate school district, or community college district extending beyond the boundaries of a city in which it is located may, pursuant to written order of the Treasurer, be subdivided along the boundaries of one or more cities and each such subdivision shall be deemed a taxing unit for purposes of this Section 503.
- (b) Separate sub-accounts shall be established in the County's 2022 Tax Payment Account. Each sub-account shall receive the proceeds of one and only one series of Notes, and amounts shall be disbursed from the sub-account to only those taxing units designated as being in that series.
- (c) In the event Notes are issued for deposit into the Project Account established under Section 701, separate sub-accounts shall be established in the Project Account. Each sub-account shall receive the proceeds of one and only one series of Notes, and amounts shall be disbursed from the sub-account only to accounts, sub-accounts and/or taxing units designated as being in the series corresponding to the sub-account from which disbursement is being made.
- (d) A separate sub-account shall be established in the County's 2022 Note Reserve Account for each series of Notes, into which shall be deposited the amount determined by the

Treasurer under Section 103 or Section 703 with respect to the series. Each sub-account shall secure one and only one series.

- (e) A separate sub-account shall be established in the County's 2022 Note Payment Account for each series of Notes. Each sub-account shall be allocated only those amounts described in Section 704 which pertain to the taxing units included in the series corresponding to the sub-account. Chargebacks received from a taxing unit pursuant to Section 905 shall be deposited in the sub-account corresponding to the series in which the taxing unit is included. Amounts held in each sub-account shall secure the debt represented by only those Notes included in the series corresponding to the sub-account, and disbursements from each sub-account may be applied toward the payment of only those Notes included in the series corresponding to the sub-account.
- (f) The amounts in each sub-account established pursuant to this Section 503 shall secure only the Notes issued in the series for which such sub-account was established until such Notes and interest on such Notes are paid in full, after which any amounts remaining in such sub-account shall accrue to the County and shall no longer be pledged toward payment of the Notes.

VI. TAXABILITY OF INTEREST

- 601. Federal Tax. The County acknowledges that the current state of Federal law mandates that the Notes be structured as taxable obligations. Consequently, the Notes shall, subject to Article X, be issued as obligations the interest on which is not excluded from gross income for purposes of Federal income tax.
- 602. State of Michigan Tax. Consistent with the treatment accorded all obligations issued pursuant to Act 206, interest on the Notes shall be exempt from the imposition of the State of Michigan income tax and the State of Michigan single business tax, and the Notes shall not be subject to the State of Michigan intangibles tax.
- 603. Change in Federal Tax Status. In the event there is a change in the Federal tax law or regulations, a ruling by the U.S. Department of Treasury or Internal Revenue Service establishes that the Notes may be issued as exempt from Federal income taxes or a change in Michigan law causes the Notes in the opinion of counsel to be exempt from federal income taxes, the Notes may be so issued.

VII. FUNDS AND SECURITY

701. <u>Delinquent Tax Project Account</u>. If the Notes are issued and sold before the Treasurer has received certification from the taxing units of the amount of the Delinquent Taxes and if such certification is not reasonably anticipated in time to allow distribution of the proceeds of the Notes within 20 days after the date of issue, a 2022 Delinquent Tax Project Account (the "Project

Account") shall be established by the Treasurer as a separate and distinct fund of the County within its general fund. The Project Account shall receive all proceeds from the sale of the Notes, including any premium or accrued interest received at the time of sale. The Project Account shall be held in trust by an escrow agent until the monies therein are disbursed in accordance with this Article VII. The escrow agent shall be a commercial bank, shall be located in Michigan, shall have authority to exercise trust powers, and shall have a net worth in excess of \$25,000,000. The form and content of the agreement between the County and the escrow agent shall be approved by the Treasurer. Subject to the following sentence, monies deposited in the Project Account shall be expended only (i) for the purpose of funding the Tax Payment Account established under Section 702 and (ii) to the extent permitted by Act 206, for the purpose of paying the expenses of the offering of the Notes. In the event the Treasurer by written order so directs, additional funding of the Project Account may be undertaken, and any surplus proceeds remaining in the Project Account after the Treasurer has completed the funding of the Tax Payment Account may be transferred to either the 2022 Note Reserve Account created under Section 703 or the 2022 Note Payment Account created under Section 704. Monies in the Project Account may be disbursed by the escrow agent to the County's 2022 Tax Payment Account at any time and from time to time, upon receipt of a written requisition signed by the Treasurer.

702. 2022 Tax Payment Account. The County's 2022 Tax Payment Account (the "Tax Payment Account") is hereby established as a distinct account within the Revolving Fund. The Treasurer shall designate all or a portion of the proceeds of the Notes, not to exceed the amount of Delinquent Taxes, for deposit in the Tax Payment Account. If, however, the proceeds of the Notes are initially deposited in the Project Account pursuant to Section 701, the Treasurer is instead authorized and directed to transfer monies included in the Project Account in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 701. The County shall apply the monies in the Tax Payment Account to the payment of the Delinquent Taxes or expenses of the borrowing in accordance with Act 206. The allocation of monies from the Tax Payment Account may be made pursuant to a single, comprehensive disbursement or may instead be made from time to time, within the time constraints of Act 206, to particular taxing units as monies are paid into the Tax Payment Account, such that the source of the monies (whether from the County's own funds, from the proceeds of a tax exempt borrowing or from the proceeds of a taxable borrowing) may be traced to the particular taxing unit receiving the funds. Moreover, and regardless of whether multiple series of Notes are issued, the Tax Payment Account may be divided into separate sub-accounts in order to allow the Treasurer to designate which taxing units shall receive borrowed funds and which shall receive funds otherwise contributed by the County.

703. 2022 Note Reserve Account. In the event funding is provided as described in this Section 703, the Treasurer shall establish a 2022 Note Reserve Account (the "Note Reserve Account") as a distinct account within the Revolving Fund. After depositing all of the monies to fund the Tax Payment Account pursuant to Section 702, the Treasurer shall next transfer to the Note Reserve Account, either from the Project Account or directly from the proceeds of Notes, any proceeds remaining from the initial issuance of the Notes. In addition, the Treasurer may transfer unpledged monies from other County sources to the Note Reserve Account in an amount which, when added to any other amounts to be deposited in the Note Reserve Account, does not exceed the amount reasonably required for the Notes secured by the Reserve Account or, if less, 20% of the total amount of the Notes secured by the Reserve Account. Except as provided below,

all monies in the Note Reserve Account shall be used solely for payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to the extent that monies required for such payment are not available in the County's 2022 Note Payment Account. Monies in the Note Reserve Account shall be withdrawn first for payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes before County general funds are used to make the payments. All income or interest earned by, or increment to, the Note Reserve Account due to its investment or reinvestment shall be deposited in the Note Reserve Account. When the Note Reserve Account is sufficient to retire the Notes and accrued interest thereon, the Treasurer may order that the Note Reserve Account be used to purchase the Notes on the market, or, if the Notes are not available, to retire the Notes when due. If so ordered by the Treasurer, all or any specified portion of the Note Reserve Account may be applied toward the redemption of any Notes designated for redemption in accordance with Section 209.

704. 2022 Note Payment Account.

- (a) The County's 2022 Note Payment Account is hereby established as a distinct account within the Revolving Fund. (The County's 2022 Note Payment Account, as supplemented by monies held in any interim account that are designated for transfer to the 2022 Note Payment Account, is herein referred to as the "Note Payment Account".) The Treasurer is directed to deposit into the Note Payment Account, promptly on receipt, those amounts described below in Paragraphs (i), (ii), (iv), and (v) that are not excluded pursuant to Subsection (c) below. Furthermore, the Treasurer may, by written order, deposit into the Note Payment Account all or any portion of the amounts described below in Paragraph (iii).
 - (i) All Delinquent Taxes.
 - (ii) All statutory interest on the Delinquent Taxes.
- (iii) All property tax administration fees on the Delinquent Taxes, net of any amounts applied toward the expenses of this borrowing.
- (iv) Any amounts which are received by the Treasurer from the taxing units within the County because of the uncollectability of the Delinquent Taxes.
- (v) Any amounts remaining in the Project Account after the transfers to the Tax Payment Account and Note Reserve Account have been made as specified in Sections 702 and 703.
- (b) Monies in the Note Payment Account shall be used by the County to pay principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes as the same become due and payable.
- (c)(i) The Treasurer may by written order provide that only a portion of the sums described above in Subsection (a) shall be deposited into the Note Payment Account and applied toward the payment of debt service on the Notes, in which event those sums which are withheld from the Note Payment Account shall be deposited into the Tax Payment Account or, pursuant to further order of the Treasurer, applied toward any other purpose consistent with Act 206. The

portion of any sums described in Subsection (a) which are withheld from the Note Payment Account pursuant to this Subsection shall be determined in accordance with the following Paragraph.

- (ii) Prior to the issuance of the Notes, the Treasurer may by written order specify a cut-off date not earlier than March 1, 2022, and only those sums payable to the Note Payment Account and received by the County after the cut-off date shall be applied to the Note Payment Account.
- (d) The Treasurer may by written order provide that at such time as sufficient funds shall have been deposited into the Note Payment Account to pay all remaining amounts owed under the Notes the pledge on any additional monies otherwise payable to the Note Payment Account shall be discharged and such monies shall not be deposited into the Note Payment Account or otherwise pledged toward payment of the Notes.
- (e) The Treasurer may by written order provide that in the event Notes are issued pursuant to Article III, amounts which would otherwise be included in the Note Payment Account or the Note Reserve Account (or any sub-account therein for a particular series of Notes) shall not include any amounts received by the County prior to the latest maturity date of any series of Notes previously issued under Article II and/or Article III.

705. Limited Tax General Obligation and Pledge.

- (a) The Notes shall be the general obligation of the County, backed by the County's full faith and credit, the County's tax obligation (within applicable constitutional and statutory limits) and the County's general funds. The County budget shall provide that if the pledged monies are not collected in sufficient amounts to meet the payments of the principal and interest due on the Notes, the County, before paying any other budgeted amounts, shall promptly advance from its general funds sufficient monies to pay such principal and interest.
- (b) In addition, the monies listed below are pledged to the repayment of the Notes and, subject to Section 901, shall be used solely for repayment of the Notes until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes are paid in full:
- (i) All amounts deposited or earned in any Project Account, until disbursed in accordance with Section 701;
- (ii) All net proceeds from the sale of the Notes deposited or earned in the Tax Payment Account, until disbursed in accordance with Section 702;
- (iii) All amounts deposited in the Note Payment Account pursuant to Section 704(a);
 - (iv) All amounts deposited in the Note Reserve Account;

- (v) All amounts earned from the investment of monies held in the Notes Payment Account or the Note Reserve Account; and
- (vi) Any supplemental monies placed in the Note Payment Account and drawn in the discretion of the Treasurer from unpledged sums on the revolving funds, which pledge shall be subject to such limitations or exceptions as shall be set forth in the written order of the Treasurer.
- (c) If the Notes shall be issued in various series pursuant to Article V, this pledge shall in the case of any independently secured series extend only to monies in accounts or subaccounts pertaining to the particular series.
- (d) If the amounts so pledged are not sufficient to pay the principal and interest when due, the County shall pay the same from its general funds or other available sources. Pursuant to written order of the Treasurer, the County may later reimburse itself for such payments from the Delinquent Taxes collected.
- 706. Security for Renewal, Refunding or Advance Refunding Notes. Renewal, refunding, or advance refunding Notes shall be secured by all or any portion of the same security securing the Notes being renewed, refunded or advance refunded. The monies pledged in Section 705 for the repayment of the Notes are also pledged for the repayment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any renewal, refunding, or advance refunding Notes issued pursuant to this Resolution, and any such renewal, refunding, or advance refunding Notes shall be the general obligation of the County, backed by its full faith and credit, which shall include the tax obligation of the County, within applicable constitutional and statutory limits.
- 707. Use of Funds after Full Payment or Provision for Payment. After all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes have been paid in full or provision made therefor by investments of pledged amounts in direct noncallable obligations of the United States of America in amounts and with maturities sufficient to pay all such principal, premium, if any, and interest when due, any further collection of Delinquent Taxes and all excess monies in any fund or account of the Revolving Fund, and any interest or income on any such amounts, may, pursuant to written order of the Treasurer and subject to Article V, be used for any proper purpose within the Revolving Fund including the securing of subsequent issues of Notes.

VIII. SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS

- 801. <u>Supplemental Agreements and Documents</u>. The Treasurer, on behalf of the County, is authorized to enter into any or all of the following agreements or commitments as may, in the Treasurer's discretion, be necessary, desirable or beneficial in connection with the issuance of the Notes, upon such terms and conditions as the Treasurer may determine appropriate:
- (a) A letter of credit, line of credit, repurchase agreement, Note insurance, or similar instrument, providing backup liquidity and/or credit support for the Notes;

- (b) A reimbursement agreement, revolving credit agreement, revolving credit Note, or similar instrument, setting forth repayments of and security for amounts drawn under the letter of credit, line of credit, repurchase agreement or similar instrument;
- (c) A marketing, remarketing, placement, authenticating, paying or tender agent agreement or dealer agreement designating a marketing, remarketing, authenticating, paying, tender or placement agent or dealer and prescribing the duties of such person or persons with respect to the Notes; and
- (d) A put agreement or provision allowing the purchaser of the Notes to require the County to repurchase the Notes upon demand at such times as may be provided in such put agreement or provision.
- (e) An agreement to use amounts formerly pledged to other years borrowings as security for the Notes when no longer so pledged.
- 802. Revolving Credit Notes. If the Treasurer enters into a revolving credit agreement (the "Agreement") pursuant to Section 801 above, the Agreement may call for the issuance of one or more revolving credit Notes (the "Revolving Credit Notes") for the purpose of renewing all or part of maturing Note or Notes that have been put pursuant to a put agreement or provision. Such Revolving Credit Notes shall be issued pursuant to Article II or III, as appropriate, and in accordance with the following provisions:
- (a) Interest on the Revolving Credit Notes may be payable on maturity, on prior redemption, monthly, bimonthly, quarterly, or as otherwise provided in the Agreement.
- (b) The Revolving Credit Notes may mature on one or more date or dates not later than the final maturity date of the Notes, as provided in the Agreement.
- (c) The Treasurer may, at the time of the original issuance of the Notes, execute and deliver one Revolving Credit Note in a maximum principal amount not exceeding the lending commitment under the Agreement from time to time in force (and may substitute one such Note in a lesser principal amount for another in the event the lending commitment is reduced), provided that a schedule shall be attached to such Note on which loans and repayments of principal and interest are evidenced and further provided that the making of a loan and the evidencing of such loan on the schedule of any such Note shall constitute the issuance of a renewal Note for the purposes of this Resolution.

IX. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

901. Expenses. Expenses incurred in connection with the Notes shall be paid from the property tax administration fees collected on the Delinquent Taxes and, if so ordered by the

Treasurer, from any earnings on the proceeds of the offering or from other monies available to the County.

- 902. <u>Bond Counsel</u>. The Notes (and any renewal, refunding or advance refunding Notes) shall be delivered with the unqualified opinion of Clark Hill PLC, attorneys of Detroit, Michigan, bond counsel chosen by the Treasurer, which selection may, at the option of the Treasurer, be for one or more years.
- 903. <u>Complete Records</u>. The Treasurer shall keep full and complete records of all deposits to and withdrawals from each of the funds and accounts in the Revolving Fund and any account or sub-account created pursuant to this Resolution and of all other transactions relating to such funds, accounts and sub-accounts, including investments of money in, and gain derived from, such funds and accounts.
- 904. Chargebacks. If, by the date which is three months prior to the final maturity date of the Notes, sufficient monies are not on deposit in the Note Payment Account and the Note Reserve Account to pay all principal of and interest on the Notes when due, Delinquent Taxes not then paid or recovered at or prior to the latest tax sale transacted two or more months before the final maturity of the Notes shall, if necessary to ensure full and timely payment on the date of final maturity, be charged back to the local units in such fashion as the Treasurer may determine, and, subject to Article V, the proceeds of such chargebacks shall be deposited into the County's 2022 Note Payment Account no later than five weeks prior to the final maturity of the Notes. This Section 905 shall not be construed to limit the authority of the Treasurer under State law to charge back under other circumstances or at other times.
- 905. <u>Investments</u>. The Treasurer is authorized to invest all monies in the Project Account, in the Revolving Fund or in any account or sub-account therein which is established pursuant to this Resolution in any one or more of the investments authorized as lawful investments for counties under Act No. 20, Public Acts of 1943, as amended. The Treasurer is further authorized to enter into a contract on behalf of the County under the Surplus Funds Investment Pool Act, Act No. 367, Michigan Public Acts of 1982, as amended, and to invest in any investment pool created thereby monies held in the Project Account, in the Revolving Fund, or in any account or sub-account therein which is established pursuant to this Resolution.
- 906. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Notes. In the event any Note is mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Treasurer may, on behalf of the County, execute and deliver, or order the Registrar or Paying Agent to authenticate and deliver, a new Note having a number not then outstanding, of like date, maturity and denomination as that mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed. In the case of a mutilated Note, a replacement Note shall not be delivered unless and until such mutilated Note is surrendered to the Treasurer or the Registrar or Paying Agent. In the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed Note, a replacement Note shall not be delivered unless and until the Treasurer and the Registrar or Paying Agent shall have received such proof of ownership and loss and indemnity as they determine to be sufficient.

ARTICLE X.

TAX-EXEMPT NOTES OR REFUNDING

- 1001. Refunding of Taxable Debt or Issuance of Tax-Exempt Debt. The County acknowledges that the current state of Federal law precludes the issuance of the Notes as obligations the interest on which is exempt from Federal income tax. However, the County presently contemplates that anticipated amendments to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and/or the Treasury Regulations issued thereunder (the "Regulations") or a change in Michigan law changing the character of the Notes may in the future permit the issuance of general obligation limited tax Notes on a tax-exempt basis, and, in view of this expectation, the County, through the offices of the Treasurer, shall issue tax-exempt Notes or issue obligations to refund any or all outstanding Notes issued as taxable obligations, at the time, on the terms, and to the extent set forth in this Article X.
- 1002. <u>Timing of Refunding</u>. The aforementioned refunding obligations (the "Refunding Notes") shall be issued after the effective date of any change in the Code, Regulations, Internal Revenue Service pronouncements or judicial rulings which, as confirmed by the written opinion of bond counsel, permit the refunding of all or some of the outstanding Notes with proceeds from obligations the interest on which is excluded from gross income for purposes of Federal income tax.
- 1003. Extent of Refunding. Subject to the other provisions of this Section 1003, the Refunding Notes shall refund all Notes outstanding at or after the effective date of any change in the law described in Section 1002. This Section 1003 shall not, however, be construed to require the refunding of any Note prior to the time such Note may be refunded on a tax-exempt basis, nor shall this Section 1003 be construed to require the refunding of any Note, if that refunding would result in greater cost to the County (including interest expense, professional fees and administrative outlays) than would arise if the Note were to remain outstanding.
- 1004. <u>Confirmatory Action</u>. Subsequent to any change in the law described in Section 1002, the Board shall convene to consider any terms of the Refunding Notes requiring specific ratification by the Board.
- 1005. <u>Arbitrage Covenant and Tax Law Compliance</u>. In the event tax-exempt Notes or Refunding Notes are issued pursuant to this Article X, the following covenants shall be observed by the County:
- (i) the County will make no use of the proceeds of the Notes or Refunding Notes and will undertake no other intentional act with respect to the Notes or Refunding Notes which, if such use or act had been reasonably expected on the date of issuance of the Notes or Refunding Notes or if such use or act were intentionally made or undertaken after the date of issuance of the Notes or Refunding Notes, would cause the Notes or Refunding Notes to be "arbitrage bonds," as defined in Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), in the Regulations promulgated under Sections 103 and 148 of the Code or in any successor or supplementary provision of law hereinafter promulgated,

- (ii) the County will undertake all actions as shall be necessary to maintain the Notes or Refunding Notes as obligations the interest on which qualifies for the tax exemption provided by Section 103(a) of the Code, including, where appropriate and without limitation, filing informational returns with the Secretary of Treasury, keeping accurate account of all monies earned in any fund, account or sub-account authorized by this Resolution or any resolution adopted in accordance with Section 1004 above, certifying cumulative cash flow deficits of the County and the local units, and investing any required portion of the gross proceeds of the Notes or Refunding Notes, whether on behalf of the County or the local units, in tax-exempt obligations or State and Local Government Series obligations, and
- (iii) the County will make timely payment to the United States of any investment earnings, realized by the County on the gross proceeds of the Notes or Refunding Notes, as may be subject to rebate under Section 148(f) of the Code, and, to the extent required under applicable law or deemed by the Treasurer to be in the best interest of the County pursuant to written order, the County's obligation to make such payment to the United States shall also account for excess investment earnings realized by local units on all or a portion of the gross proceeds distributed to, and held by, the local units pursuant to Section 702.
- (iv) the Treasurer shall be directed to take such actions and to enter into such agreements and certifications, on behalf of the County, as the Treasurer shall deem necessary or appropriate to comply with the foregoing covenants.

1006. <u>Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure</u>. If necessary, this Board of Commissioners, for and on behalf of the County of Gladwin, hereby covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Notes to be issued by the County, to enter into a written undertaking (the "Undertaking") required by Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule") to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in accordance with the Rule. The Undertaking shall be substantially in the form as approved by the Underwriter of the Notes. The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the beneficial owners of the Notes or by the Underwriter on behalf of such beneficial owners (provided that the Underwriter's right to enforce the provisions of the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the County's obligations hereunder and under the Undertaking), and any failure by the County to comply with the provisions of the Undertaking shall not be deemed a default with respect to the Notes.

The County Treasurer or other officer of the County charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes shall provide a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the terms of the County's Undertaking.

After consideration of the borrowing resolution presented earlier this day with regard to Act 206 of the Public Acts of 1893, as amended ("Act 206"), and in respect of such borrowing resolution, the resolution set forth below was offered by Commissioner $\frac{Ron}{Ron}$ and seconded by Commissioner $\frac{Ron}{Ron}$ $\frac{Ron}{Ron}$.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 2022 ADMINISTRATIVE FUND

IT IS RESOLVED BY THE GLADWIN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AS FOLLOWS:

The County Treasurer, pursuant to Section 87c, Subsection (2), of Act 206, is designated as Agent for the County, and the Treasurer's office shall receive such sums as are provided in Section 87c, Subsection (3), to cover administrative expenses.

Discussion followed. A vote was the	ereupon taken on the foregoing resolution and the vote
for each such resolution was as follows:	

AYES:	Kyle Grove, Ron Taylor,				
	Michael Szuch, Karen Moor	e			
	Rick Grove				
NAYS:	None				
ABSTAIN:	- None				

A sufficient majority having voted therefor, the two resolutions appearing above were adopted.

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF GLADWIN

I certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the resolutions adopted by the Gladwin County Board of Commissioners, that such resolutions were duly adopted at a $\frac{\text{Board}}{\text{meeting held on the } 22}$ day of $\frac{\text{February}}{\text{February}}$, $\frac{22}{\text{G}}$, and that notice of such meeting was given as required by law.

, Clerk of the GLADWIN

County Board of Commissioners

[SEAL]